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Question #2: 
 
Does the “reduction of man days” as indicated in section 4.6.2 of annex I.1 Technical terms of 
reference refer to a price for man days? If so, will the reduction applied towards the prices be taken 
into account under any award criteria or financial score? 
 
Answer #2: 
 
Yes, the “reduction of man days” refers to the price for man days. This is however not taken into 
account for any award criterion or for the calculation of the total price as set out in Annex I.F. The 
discount is linked to non-foreseeable tasks which is why it cannot be considered for the evaluation. 
 
 
 
Question #3: 
 
Is it required to present the specific profiles of advisers demonstrating the ability to interpret and 
apply national laws of Czech Republic, France, Belgium, Spain, Germany, Italy and the Netherlands 
(i.e., for each of the jurisdictions)? If so, are these advisers considered as subcontractors if they 
primarily cooperate with a different legal entity? 
 
Answer #3: 
 
Regarding the profiles to be presented, please refer to Section 2.1.1 in which it is clarified that the 
curricula vitae of the proposed staff should indicate their experience relevant to the specific 
tasks that they will cover. As Annex I.1 (Technical Terms of Reference) requires that the tasks may 
require the interpretation and application of the national laws of the Czech Republic, France, Belgium, 
Spain, Germany, Italy and the Netherlands, this should be represented in the profiles being presented. 
 
Whether such an adviser is a subcontractor depends on the tenderer’s organisation; please refer to 
Article 2 (61) of the Financial Regulation (Regulation (EU, Euratom) 2018/1046) which defines a 
subcontractor as an economic operator that is proposed by a candidate or tenderer or contractor to 
perform part of a contract. This is to be distinguished from the participation of consortia (see Section 
2.2.7 of the Tender Specifications). 
 
 
 
Question #4: 
 
If a tenderer participates in more than one lot, are advisers proposed for one lot in any way 
disqualified or disadvantaged to participate as advisers in another lot? 
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Answer #4: 
 
There is no such disqualification or disadvantage. 
 
 
 
Question #5: 
According to Article I.13 of the Framework Contract, the comprehensive usage rights are transferred 
to the customer, which allows for extensive amendments and exploitation. Are we right in assuming 
that the reports are generated as documentation of the service, either under the logo and the name 
of the client or without logo and name? Should it be created with logo of the contractor, is it true 
that the granting of an irrevocable right, unlimited in time and space, only applies to the simple 
right to use the report?   
 
 
 
Answer #5: 
 
The right extends to the contents of the report (i.e. the legal services provided). The logo of the 
contractor should not be included in the contents of the report. 
 
 
 
Question #6: 
 
(i) Clause 2.2.4.2.2 of the Terms of reference provides that the contractor shall obtain from his 
collaborators an explicit “declaration on confidentiality and the absence of professional conflicting 
interest” with EUSPA before commencing any service provision. Law firms differ significantly from 
other consulting and service companies in regard to confidentiality requirements due to mandatory 
statutory provisions of their professional law and professional supervision. Pursuant to legal 
provisions, law firms and their employees are forbidden to disclose in particular facts and 
circumstances that entrusted to the professional activity or are known, without authorization. 
These obligations are mandated and continue indefinitely after termination of the respective 
contractual relationship. Each employee signed when entering the company a "commitment to 
secrecy". If our assumption is correct that an obligation pursuant to clause 2.2.4.2.2 of the terms of 
reference is then not necessary if an employee of a law firm has issued an express statement to the 
law firm due to professional legal duty to maintain secrecy?  
(ii) Is our understanding correct that the “Declaration on confidentiality and absence of professional 
conflicting interests” covers the “written declaration of interest” in accordance with section 4.1 of 
Annex 1.1 (“EUSPA Policy on the prevention and management of conflicts of interest”)?  
 
 
 
Answer #6: 
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Regarding the first question (i), please be aware that the declaration also covers professional 
conflicting interests, which may exist regardless of a professional requirement to secrecy, making it 
necessary to sign such a declaration. Furthermore, the existence of other (in this case, legal) 
requirements of confidentiality does not mean that additional such declarations may not be required. 
Regarding the second question (ii), a “written declaration of interest” is different from the “declaration 
on confidentiality and absence of professional conflicting interests” . You may find examples of written 
declarations of interest for the Management Team at https://www.euspa.europa.eu/about/about-
euspa/governance#Executive_director. 
 
 
 
Question #7: 
 
According to Article III.16 of the Framework Contract the contracting authority shall be entitled to 
conduct checks and audits. This shall include the right to access to sites and premises of the 
contractor. As a professional law firm, the contractor is bound to legal and contractual 
confidentiality obligations. Is it therefore true, that checks and audits within the contractor sites 
and premises according to Article III.16 of the Framework Contract shall be conducted only to the 
extent necessary and that this shall never force the contractor to be in breach with its legal and 
contractual confidentiality obligations towards its clients? 
 
 
 
Answer #7: 
 
Yes, checks and audits would of course be conducted with respect to the contractor’s legal and 
contractual confidentiality obligations towards its clients. 
 
 
 
Question #8: 
 
In light of the current situation due to the Russian-Ukrainian conflict we would like to ask you if it 
would be possible to submit the tender by email since the correct functioning of the postal service 
could be compromised and we risk not to be able to respect the deadline because of a possible lack 
of operation of the postal services. Otherwise we would like to ask you if the deadline could be 
postponed so as to be able to respect it. 
 
 
 
Answer #8: 
 
A submission of the tenders by e-mail is not foreseen according to the Tender Specifications. 
Regarding the deadline, please be aware that according to Section 4.7 of the Tender Specifications, 
you are required to submit the tenders before the deadline indicated in Section 1.7. This means, 
practically, that the outer envelope of the tender needs to be stamped with a date which is within this 
deadline for the tender to be considered to having been submitted on time. In case there are delivery 

https://www.euspa.europa.eu/about/about-euspa/governance#Executive_director
https://www.euspa.europa.eu/about/about-euspa/governance#Executive_director
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delays, this is not an issue since EUSPA will also receive from you a notification of the submission by 
e-mail (see also Section 4.7 of the Tender Specifications) and will therefore be aware that a tender is 
still on its way. Therefore, an extension of the submission deadline is not considered necessary. 
 
 
 
Question #9: 
 
According to paragraph 3.2.1. of Annex I – General Tender Specification, the Contracting Authority 
requires to demonstrate under the criterion L3 “Professional conflicting interest that may negatively 
impact the performance of the Contract”. Furthermore, in the same paragraph, the Contracting 
Authority states that: “If a single tenderer submits tenders for more lots, specific attention will be 
paid to the demonstration that no professional conflicting interests exist between the execution of 
multiple lots.” The Contractor is not sure what “professional conflicting interests exist between the 
execution of multiple lots” means in context of this requirement as Contractor will be providing 
legal services to the same client (Contracting Authority) in relation to all lots. We hereby ask 
Contracting Authority to explain what the “professional conflicting interests” in this context can be 
or at least provide some examples. 
Taking into account the nature and relevance of the requested information for preparation of the 
bids, the Contractor would like to ask the Contracting Authority to consider a prolongation of the 
deadline for tender submission. 
 
 
 
Answer #9: 
 
A professional conflicting interest within this context would in particular relate to the legal advisers 
allotted to the execution of tasks within different lots, i.e. there should be a demonstration by the 
tenderer that a legal adviser assigned to multiple lots will be in a position to work independently in 
relation to their tasks performed in different EU Space Programme projects. 
An extension of the submission deadline is not considered necessary. 
 
 
 
Question #10: 
 
We would like to ask a question regarding point 4.6 of Annex I.1 of the invitation to Tender 
EUSPA/OP/20/21 (specific technical terms of reference).  
Under lot 3, the contractor would be requested to perform the contract outside its premises, on 
EUSPA premises in Prague. Such performance is estimated as 12 days/months, which equals 
approximately to a part-time secondment.  
Could you please provide further details on this point, i.e. :  
What tasks will be performed within these days ?  
How many senior or junior adviser(s) will be seconded to EUSPA ?  
Will a division between team members be possible or does EUSPA requires the same team members 
to perform the on-site tasks throughout the implementation of the contract ?  
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Answer #10: 
 
Neither the tasks nor the respective number of senior or junior advisers can be specified at the 
tendering stage. 
If the reference to “team members” means to refer to legal advisers, then the response is that it is not 
required that a particular legal adviser is available for on-site tasks throughout the implementation of 
the contract. 
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